



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

**Proposals from the Executive Board to the WBSC Europe Extraordinary Congress
Amendment of the WBSC Europe Statutes
[In accordance with Article 14.9 (q) and Article 18(1)]**

1. Proposal related to Regulatory Law and purpose of the Organization in general

Article 1 Name

1.1 -The name of this organisation shall be the World Baseball Softball Confederation Europe, and hereinafter referred to as "WBSC Europe". WBSC Europe is a not-for-profit and apolitical entity, organised as an Association and in **accordance with Article 60 of the Swiss Civil Code.**

Reasoning: Organizing the Confederation under Swiss Law is logical as a European Confederation that will be registered in Switzerland.

1.2 - WBSC Europe is a Continental Association established and recognized by the WBSC in accordance with the WBSC Statute, for the purpose of managing and organizing the Sport of Baseball-Softball, and all its disciplines in Europe in accordance to the WBSC policies and statutes. WBSC Europe is legally established in accordance with the WBSC Statutes and it shall be **in charge of all activities in all related disciplines (the "disciplines") of Baseball/Softball including but not limited to: Baseball, Softball, Baseball5, all adapted formats of such disciplines for people with physical and mental impairments para-sports") and all virtual/electronic versions of the Sport ("eSports") thereof in all the countries and territories within the Region of Europe**

1.2.1 – "eSports" menas any form of active virtual/electronic entertainment representing or impersonating fully or in part any of the disciplines , events or trademarks governed by the WBSC as well as all related online and offline competitions..

Reasoning:

Addition of other formats and disciplines under the auspices of WBSC Europe.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

2. Proposal related to registration location

ARTICLE 2. LOCATION

2.1 - The headquarters of WBSC Europe shall be registered **in Pully, Switzerland**. WBSC Europe may have branch offices in other areas throughout Europe. The WBSC Executive Board may change the location of the WBSC Europe headquarters.

Reasoning:

As the WBSC Headquarters are in Pully, Switzerland and WBSC Europe is governed by Swiss Law it is a logical solution and a matter of convenience to register there.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".

3. Proposal related to language at Congress and documents

ARTICLE 5. LANGUAGE

5.1 - The official language of WBSC Europe shall be English and French. When a dispute over interpretation arises, the English text shall prevail.

5.2 The General Congress and any other meetings official language as well as WBSC Europe documents language shall be English only.

Reasoning:

Although the official language is English and French, the General Congress ,other meetings and documents will be in English as English is more widespread throughout the Member Federations.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

4. Proposal related to alternative wording in Membership

ARTICLE 6. MEMBERSHIP

6.1 - The recognised national or territorial sports governing bodies governing Baseball and those governing Softball, or a single body jointly governing Baseball-Softball, which meets the requirements as set forth by the WBSC ~~Europe~~, shall be eligible for membership in WBSC Europe as a National Federation.

6.2 - The Constitution, By-Laws or Articles of Association and Rules of a Member must not be in conflict with those of the WBSC ~~and /or WBSC Europe~~. Where there is a conflict, the WBSC ~~and/or WBSC Europe~~ Statutes and Codes shall prevail.

6.5 - WBSC Europe shall have the following classes of membership:

- a) Affiliated members, which will be categorised as either Full Members or Provisional Members **of WBSC and must comply with WBSC Europe Statutes, Regulations, Rules, By Laws**; or
- b) Associate members.

6.6 - To be an Associate Member of the WBSC Europe, the following is required:

- a) The applicant must officially apply to the WBSC ~~Europe~~ and its membership shall be approved and ratified by WBSC Europe Congress and the WBSC Congress.

Reasoning:

Membership through the WBSC is the course of becoming a WBSC Europe Member and thus changes in wording was needed.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

5. Proposal related to Membership through the WBSC

ARTICLE 7. APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP

New 7.1 - All membership applications for WBSC Europe are to be made through WBSC. All WBSC Members are divided into the Continents recognized by WBSC. Only one application is required to become a WBSC member and a member of the pertinent Continental Organisation.

7.1 – 7.6 – Deleted

Reasoning:

Membership through the WBSC is the course of becoming a WBSC Europe Member and thus changes in wording was needed as deletions. .

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".

6. Proposal related to the removal of Divisions in wording in Disciplinary Actions

ARTICLE 9. DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

9.1 - Any matter related to disciplinary actions will be decided by the Executive Board and in accordance to either the WBSC Europe ~~SD or WBSC Europe BD~~ disciplinary proceedings or the WBSC Disciplinary By-Laws until such proceedings are authorized.

Reasoning:

Deletions of wording relating to the removal of the Divisions in WBSC Europe .

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

7. Proposal related to Termination of Membership and WBSC coordination

ARTICLE 10. TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

10.1 - The membership status of a WBSC Europe Member may be forfeited on any one or more of the following grounds:

a) By the Member's written notice of resignation from membership, addressed to **the WBSC and** WBSC Europe Headquarters.

10.2 - All matters relating to the termination of membership will be decided by the WBSC Europe Executive Board and **in coordination with the WBSC** ~~accordance to the CEB or ESF disciplinary proceedings or the WBSC Disciplinary By-Laws~~ save and except that decisions on the forfeiture and de-registration of membership must be endorsed at the next following WBSC Europe Congress **and WBSC Congress**.

Reasoning:

As WBSC Membership allows Membership in WBSC Europe wording changes are needed as above.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".

8. Proposal related to monetary issues within WBSC Europe

ARTICLE 11. FEES , REVENUES AND EXPENSES

11.2 - ~~Both Baseball Europe and Softball Europe (as defined in Article 1.3) shall be considered and treated as of equal importance and shall be allocated revenues from WBSC Europe on an equal basis for all purposes, including but not limited to operating budgets for their offices and employees, conduct of Competitions, and development of their respective sports throughout Europe. They shall jointly bear the responsibility of WBSC Europe expenses~~

Reasoning:

There is no more need for the Article of equal importance , as it is embedded in the Executive Board that both are of course equal and allocation of revenues will be decided by the neutral Executive board.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

9. Proposal to the deletion of the word Divisions and addition of Commissions

ARTICLE 12. ORGANIZATION OF WBSC EUROPE

12.1 - WBSC Europe shall be responsible, through the respective **commissions** ~~divisions~~ (the **Commissions** ~~Divisions~~) of Baseball ("Baseball **Europe Division**") and of Softball ("Softball **Europe Division**") for the technical rules and competition supervision and organisation, and European development, respectively of the sport of Baseball and all its disciplines and the sport of Softball and all its disciplines. ~~The WBSC Europe Baseball Division and the WBSC Europe Softball Division are headed based on the Code of Divisions~~

12.2 - WBSC Europe is authorised and entitled to raise revenue to benefit it's activities and shall create, manage and control competitions. All such competitions shall use the name of WBSC Europe and any sponsorship or third party contract to be entered into with such reference to the WBSC Europe name or logos, or any broadcast agreement to be entered into with the use of the WBSC Europe name or logos shall be submitted to the Executive Board for its approval. Should the Executive Board believe that the proposed competition, the proposed sponsorship or third party contract or the proposed broadcasting contract would conflict with other WBSC Europe agreements or would reflect negatively on WBSC Europe, the WBSC Executive Board may decline the agreement.

Reasoning:

Proposed to form Commissions and not elective Divisions for the respective Sports and thus allowing one Board to be the decision makers in regards to Baseball and Softball.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

10. Proposal related to the succession line as Chair of Congress and postponement and format of postponed Congresses and Extraordinary Congresses, order of Congress business and deletion of Divisions.

ARTICLE 13. THE CONGRESS

13.3 – The President shall control the conduct of a Congress (“Chair”). If ~~neither of the~~ President ~~is are not~~ available, ~~then the Secretary General (SG) 4th VP~~ shall be the Chair. If no such person is available, the Executive Board shall elect one among them to serve as Chair.

13.7 - A Congress or Extraordinary Congress may take place in person, in writing or via electronic means. If special circumstances a Congress or an Extraordinary Congress can be postponed, held in writing or held whole or in part by electronic means (“Virtual Congress/Extraordinary Congress”), allowing WBSC Members to attend it via electronic system (video and/or audio). The WBSC Europe Executive Board is competent to decide in which circumstances a Congress or an Extraordinary Congress has to be postponed or be staged remotely and must inform the Members at least 30 (thirty) days before the date of the Congress/Extraordinary Congress.

13.10 - The order of business of the Congress shall generally be:

- d) **Ratification** of new Members; (if any)
- i) **Appoint Independent Certified Auditor;**

13. ~~13.2~~ - Any alteration of or addition to the WBSC Europe Rules and Regulations ~~agreed upon by the Executive Board of the Divisions~~ shall become effective immediately after the decision.

Reasoning:

As there is no longer a 1st VP succession is passed down to Secretary General.

In the recent experiences of the last 18 months it has been come clear provisions for different formats need to be optional in certain instances thus the addition of the formats proposed.

Addition of business of Congress certifying an Auditor and the removal of the wording of Divisions.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

11. Proposal related to addition of two Athlete representatives to the Board and the process of elections of the members

ARTICLE 14. THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

14.1 The Executive Board shall be composed of the following officers, ~~officers elected or appointed~~ in accordance with the Election By-Laws:

- h) **One Athlete Representative Baseball**
- i) **One Athlete Representative Softball**

14.2 - The officers of the Executive Board shall be elected as follows and in accordance with the WBSC Europe Election By-Laws:

14.2.1 - The President, Secretary General, and the Treasurer shall be elected by the Congress at the Annual Congress every four (4) years by all Members attending the Congress;

14.2.2 - The Vice President of Baseball and the three (3) Members at Large from Baseball shall be elected by the Congress at the Annual Congress every four (4) years solely by the votes of the Combined Federations and the Single Baseball Federations attending the Congress;

14.2.3 - The Vice President of Softball and the three (3) Members at Large from Softball shall be elected by the Congress at the Annual Congress every four (4) years solely by the votes of the Combined Federations and the Single Softball Federations attending the Congress;

14.2.4 - The respective Athletes' Representatives for Baseball and Softball shall be elected every four (4) years by the respective athletes of that sport discipline at such Baseball and Softball competitions as may be decided by the respective Councils and under the supervision of the WBSC Europe Executive Board.

Reasoning:

The importance of athlete representation on the Board is universal and so this addition is part of the inclusion concept of the WBSC Europe Board.

Clarity of the Election procedures for Board members is imperative and added to the Statutes.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

12. Proposal related to the terms of office of the Executive board

ARTICLE 14. THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

14.2.5 – Terms of Office:

- a) The President shall serve for a term of four (4) years with the possibility of re- election but limited to a maximum of three (3) mandates consecutive or not.
- b) After having served three (3) terms as President, he/she shall not be eligible for re-election as President or any other position on the Executive Board.
- c) The Secretary General and the Treasurer shall serve for a term of four (4) years with the possibility of re- election limited to a maximum of three (3) mandates consecutive or not.
- d) The term of office of all other Board Members, with the exception of the Athlete Representatives' is four (4) years with the possibility of re- election with a maximum of three (3) terms of four (4) years consecutive or not.
- e) The term of office of the Athlete Representatives' is four (4) years.
- f) If a Board Member is elected as President, he/she shall be entitled to serve a total maximum of five terms, whether consecutive or not.

Reasoning:

The addition of terms office The importance of athlete representation on the Board is universal and so this addition is part of the inclusion concept of the WBSC Europe Board. Clarity of the Election procedures for Board members is imperative and added to the Statutes.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

13. Proposal related to first term of office , succession in line, removal of codes and divisions

ARTICLE 14. THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

14.3 - The WBSC Europe Executive Board shall hold office for a four (4) year term except for the first elections in 2022 where the Executive Board will be elected for a three (3) year term and commencing in 2025 the Executive Board shall hold office for a four (4) year term.

14. ~~107~~ - The Executive Board is not authorised to make any changes in the Statutes ~~and/or the Codes~~ without the approval of the Congress.

14.11 - The Executive Board shall operate as follows.

The Executive Board shall meet at least three times every calendar year, which, **one may or may not be during the Congress,**

14.11 - The Executive Board shall operate as follows.

- b) A quorum of the Board shall consist of one – half of the persons then holding a position on the Board. In the absence of a quorum, the meeting may nevertheless proceed to discuss the matters on the agenda without proceeding to voting. Any decision of the Executive Board must have **a simple majority of those present.**

14.11 - The Executive Board shall operate as follows.

- c) The President shall preside at every Meeting of the Executive Board, **if the President is not available then the Secretary General shall preside in his or her place,** failing which the members of the Executive Board in attendance shall elect a chair of the meeting.

14. ~~130~~ - The following shall govern the removal of a Member of the Executive Board:

- 2. The Member of the Executive Board subject to removal shall be timely notified of the receipt of any such motion for removal. The procedural and substantive provisions of WBSC **Europe** or **WBSC** Disciplinary By-Laws shall apply to every proceeding for a removal or suspension.

14. ~~130~~ - The following shall govern the removal of a Member of the Executive Board:

- 2. In the case of a removal of an at Large member, the **President and the relevant VP Baseball or Softball Division**

14. ~~130~~ - The following shall govern the removal of a Member of the Executive Board:

In the case the position of the President of the WBSC Europe becomes vacant, the Executive Board shall decide who will replace the President amongst themselves and will be a called Interim President until the next general Congress.

Reasoning:

As the first term after the elections will be for only three years i order to continue the cycles as per elections from 2017 and thus in 2025 will be the next elections.

Other proposed changes are wording an succession line as mentioned above.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

14. Proposal related to definition of responsibilities of the three top officers of the Executive Board

ARTICLE 15. THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS

15.1 - President

The President is the legal representatives of the WBSC Europe and their duties and responsibilities include:

- b) To elaborate together with the Secretary General, and the Treasurer the annual report, distributed to Members of the WBSC Europe and to record in writing and present at the Congress, all WBSC Europe activities to the end of his or her mandate.
- g) **To propose to the Executive Board the appointment of the Chairmen of the WBSC Europe Commissions and all their members, excluding the Chairs of the Baseball and Softball Commissions.**
- h) ~~To propose to the Executive Board the appointment of the Tournament Director and the Jury of Appeal for each official joint or special competition of the WBSC Europe.~~

15.2 - Vice Presidents Baseball and Softball:

- a) **The VP Baseball and VP Softball are appointed to the positions of Chairs of the Respective Commissions and shall be responsible for execution of all activities in their respective Sport.**
- b) To support the President in all the duties of the President.
- c) To perform such duties and functions as the President or the Executive Board may deem additional appropriate.

15.3 - Secretary General:

The duties and responsibilities of the Secretary General are:

- g) **In the absence of the President, to serve as acting President.**
- h) **To keep all records.**
- i) **To provide to WBSC a yearly activity and development report.**

15.4 - Treasurer:

The duties and responsibilities of the Treasurer are:

- d) **To oversee the payment of fees by Members, and ensure due and proper communication and notification of account statements in relation thereto, including notification of annual fees due by January 31st of the corresponding year.**
- k) **to provide to WBSC a yearly financial report**

Reasoning:

These additions are here to incorporate the changes of positions and establishing the VP Baseball and VP Softball Chairs of their respective Commissions.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

15. Proposal of the responsibilities of the Athlete Representatives on the Executive board.

ARTICLE 15. THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS

15.6 - Athlete Representatives:

The Athletes' Representatives are the legal representatives of the athletes in WBSC Europe. Their duties and responsibilities are to be the athletes voice in all matters in the WBSC Europe and the WBSC Europe Executive Board and carry out such duties and responsibilities that the WBSC Europe Statutes, By-Laws, Rules and Regulations, and the WBSC Europe Executive Board shall entrust upon them.

15.7 - Except for Athlete Representatives, members of the Executive Board shall not participate or otherwise be involved in WBSC Europe competition as an athlete, manager, coach, technical official, umpire, or scorer

Reasoning:

Proposed responsibilities of the Athletes representatives in order to make clear why they have been elected .

Clarify that all Executive Members cannot participate in order to keep the integrity of the Game and their positions intact.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

16. Proposal related to the creation of the Baseball and Softball Commissions instead of the Divisions.

ARTICLE 16. THE COMMISSIONS

16.2 – The President shall appoint and dismiss Chairpersons and members of Commissions with the approval of the Executive Board. **(except for the Baseball and Softball Commissions)**

16.4 - The following Commissions are mandatory, shall have jurisdiction over the subject and may only be dissolved by a two thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Executive Board:

- a) **Baseball Commission**: This commission oversees all matters for Baseball, supervised by the Executive Board. This includes WBSC Europe Competitions for Baseball. This Commission administers the Equipment Regulations and the Tournament Regulations that govern and apply to WBSC Europe Competitions. It has at least five members appointed By WBSC Executive Board based on proposal by the Vice President Baseball (who chairs this commission).. The President is an ex officio member.
- b) **Softball Commission**: This commission oversees all matters for Softball, supervised by the Executive Board. This includes WBSC Europe Competitions for Softball. This Commission administers the Equipment Regulations and the Tournament Regulations that govern and apply to WBSC Europe Competitions. It has at least five members appointed By WBSC Executive Board based on proposal by the Vice President Softball (who chairs this commission). The President is an ex officio member.

Reasoning:

To implement the one elective body concept it was necessary to eliminate the elective Divisions and create the Commission entity that will deal with Baseball and Softball policies set by the WBSC Europe Board.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

17. Proposal to delete to past mandatory Commissions and to add the Integrity Commission as Mandatory.

ARTICLE 16. THE COMMISSIONS

16.4 - The following Commissions are mandatory, shall have jurisdiction over the subject and may only be dissolved by a two thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Executive Board:

- ~~a) Financial Commission: acts for the internal control of the finances and budget, establishes and defines budgetary and financial guidelines, advises the Executive Board on budgetary and financial issues, on any budgetary and financial problem within the frame of the WBSC Europe on any budgetary and financial problem.~~
- ~~c) Anti-Doping and Medical Commission: The Medical and Anti-Doping Commission advises the Executive Board on all matters relating to athlete health and anti-doping, and for implementing the WBSC Anti-Doping Code.~~

16.4 - The following Commissions are mandatory, shall have jurisdiction over the subject and may only be dissolved by a two thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Executive Board:

- d) Integrity Commission: This commission administers the Code of Ethics for WBSC Europe under delegated authority from the Executive Board and cooperates with the WBSC for any doping related matters arising in the Continent. It shall when required by a resolution of the Executive Board conduct a review of matters.**

Reasoning:

The WBSC Europe President, treasurer and the Board are responsible for the financial issues and will deal as a Board in all financial matters.

The WBSC Europe will take its guidance on Doping through the WBSC and thus a Commission is not necessary.

The Integrity Commission is an important addition to the Good Governance of the Organization.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

18. Proposal related to the respective Commissions responsibilities and governing authority

ARTICLE 18. THE STATUTES AND THE TOURNAMENT REGULATIONS

ARTICLE 18. THE STATUTES AND THE TOURNAMENT REGULATIONS

18.2 - The Tournament Regulations Baseball Commission and Softball Commission respectively govern all WBSC Europe competitions.

18.4 - Every power, express or implied, for the administration of Baseball - Softball related to the duties of Article 16.4. a) and b) within Europe shall be vested in the relevant Commissions with the approval of the Executive Board. Each Tournament Regulation, the decision of a Commission and the action taken by a Congress or the Executive Board shall be consistent with these Statutes. In the event of any discrepancy or conflict, these Statutes shall prevail.

Reasoning:

Important to clarify the Commissions responsibilities and working definitions.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

19. Proposal related to Doping Control and authority under WBSC and WADA

ARTICLE 20. DOPING CONTROL

ARTICLE 20. DOPING CONTROL

20.1 WBSC Europe has adopted, administers and enforces the Anti-Doping Rules in cooperation with the WBSC and WADA.

~~20.2 The initial Anti-Doping Program adopted by WBSC Europe consists of the respective Anti-Doping Codes of the sports, which shall be replaced by a single unified and WADA-qualified WBSC Europe Anti-Doping Code at or after the first WBSC Europe General Meeting.~~

~~20.3 The Anti-Doping Program shall be set forth in the WBSC Europe Anti-Doping Code and given to all National Federations, the IOC, and the NOC of every National Federation.~~

20.2 Any violation of the Anti-Doping Rules is actionable by the WBSC.

Reasoning:

As WBSC already has the main authority in these issues and directly dealing with WADA we express this in the Statutes.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".



WBSC EUROPE EXTRAORDINARY CONGRESS
ROME, ITALY, 19 NOVEMBER 2021
FOR DECISION

20. Proposal related to removal of article within merchandising irrelevant to the new status.

ARTICLE 23. MERCHANDISING

Article 23

~~23.2 – A WBSC Europe Full Affiliated Member taking part in competitions organised by Multidisciplinary Sports Games, and all the competitions organised by the WBSC Europe, may use advertising brand or badges any time these correspond to what is authorised by WBSC Europe.~~

23.3 - The WBSC Europe reserves itself, ~~subject to consultation with CEB and ESF~~, the right to establish the conditions for the use of advertising in the uniforms, or under any other form, in the Continental competitions, taking into account, whenever possible, the affiliate members' contracted commitments, these latter having requested the WBSC Europe's authorisation before contracting any commitments regarding this matter.

Reasoning:

WBSC sets the standards and authorisation for multidisciplinary sports games.
CEB and ESF no longer relevant.

Executive Board Recommendation:

The Executive Board recommends that the Congress approves with a vote "in Favour".